

Remuneration Committee

Terms of Reference



Table of Contents

1	Constitution	3
2	Membership	3
3	Secretary	3
4	Quorum	3
5	Frequency of meetings	3
6	Notice of meetings	3
7	Minutes of meetings	4
8	Annual General Meeting	4
9	Duties	4
10	Reporting responsibilities	5
11	Further delegation	6
12	Other matters	6
13	Authority	6



1 Constitution

The Board of RWS Holdings plc (the 'Board') has reviewed and confirmed the establishment of a Committee of the Board to be known as the Remuneration Committee (the 'Committee').

2 Membership

- The Committee shall comprise at least three members, all of whom shall be independent Non-Executive Directors. The Chair of the Board may also serve on the Committee as an additional member if the Chair's role is considered to be Non-Executive rather than Executive and the Chair was considered independent on appointment as Chair of the Board. Members of the Committee shall be appointed by the Board in consultation with the Chair of the Committee.
- Only members of the Committee shall have the right to attend Committee meetings. However, other individuals, including but not limited to, the Chief Executive Officer, Chief People Officer, General Counsel and Company Secretary, and external advisers, may be invited to attend all or any part of any meeting as and when deemed appropriate and necessary.
- Appointments to the Committee shall be for a period of up to three years which may be
 extended for further periods of up to three years, provided members (other than the Chair of
 the Board, if the Chair is a member of the Committee) continue to be independent.
- The Board shall appoint the Committee Chair. In the absence of the Committee Chair and/or an appointed deputy, the remaining members present shall elect one of themselves to chair the meeting who would qualify under these Terms of Reference to be appointed to that position by the Board. The Chair of the Board shall not be Chair of the Committee.

3 Secretary

The Company Secretary or their nominee shall act as the Secretary of the Committee.

4 Quorum

The quorum for the transaction of business shall be two.

5 Frequency of meetings

The Committee shall meet formally at least twice a year and otherwise as required.

6 Notice of meetings

- Meetings of the Committee shall be called by the Secretary of the Committee at the request of the Committee Chair.
- Unless otherwise agreed, notice of each meeting confirming the venue, time and date
 together with an agenda of items to be discussed, shall be forwarded to each member of the
 Committee, any other person required to attend and all other independent Non-Executive
 Directors, no later than two working days before the date of the meeting. Supporting papers
 shall be sent to Committee members, other attendees and other members of the Board, as
 appropriate, at the same time.



7 Minutes of meetings

- The Secretary shall minute the proceedings and resolutions of all Committee meetings, including the names of those present and in attendance.
- Draft minutes of Committee meetings shall be circulated promptly to all members of the Committee. Once approved, minutes should be circulated to all other members of the Board unless, in the opinion of the Committee Chair, it would be inappropriate to do so.
- Signed copies of the minutes of meetings of the Committee shall be maintained for the Company's records in hard and soft copy.

8 Annual General Meeting

The Committee Chair (or an appointed deputy) should attend the Annual General Meeting to answer any shareholders questions on executive remuneration and the Committee's activities.

9 Duties

The Committee should carry out the duties detailed below for the Company, major subsidiary undertakings and the Group as a whole, as appropriate.

The Committee shall:

- Have responsibility for setting the remuneration policy for all Executive Directors and the Company's Chair, the Executive Team and Company Secretary, including pension rights and any compensation payments. The Board itself, or where required by the Articles of Association, the shareholders, should determine the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors within the limits set in the Articles of Association. No Executive Director, member of the Executive Team or Company Secretary shall be involved in any decisions as to their own remuneration.
- In determining such policy, take into account all factors which it deems necessary including relevant legal and regulatory requirements, the provisions and recommendations of the QCA code and associated guidance. The objective of such policy shall be to attract, retain and motivate executive management of the quality required to run the Company successfully without paying more than is necessary, having regard to views of shareholders and other stakeholders. The remuneration policy should have regard to the risk appetite of the Company and alignment to the Company's long term strategic goals. A significant proportion of remuneration should be structured as to link rewards to corporate and individual performance and designed to promote the long-term success of the Company.
- When setting remuneration policy for Directors, Executive Team and Company Secretary, review and have regard to pay and employment conditions across the Group, especially when determining annual salary increases.
- Review the on-going appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policies.
- Within the terms of agreed policy and in consultation with the Chair of the Company and/or Group Chief Executive Officer, as appropriate, determine the elements of the individual remuneration package for the Chair, the Executive Directors, Executive Team and Company Secretary including salary, benefits, bonuses, incentive payments and share options or other share awards and pension arrangements.
- Obtain reliable, up-to-date information about remuneration in other companies of comparable scale and complexity. To help it fulfil its obligations, the Committee shall have full authority to appoint remuneration consultants and to commission or purchase any reports, surveys or



information which it deems necessary at the expense of the Company but within any budgetary restraints imposed by the Board.

- Be exclusively responsible for establishing the selection criteria, selecting, appointing and setting terms of reference for any remuneration consultants who advise the Committee.
- Approve the design of, and determine the targets for, any performance-related pay schemes operated by the Company and approve total annual payments made under such schemes.
- Review the design of all share incentive plans for approval by the Board. For any such plans,
 determine each year whether awards should be made, and if so, the overall amount of such
 awards, the individual awards to Executive Directors, Executive Team and Company
 Secretary and the performance targets to be used. Decide any dispute or question relating to
 an award or the exercise or vesting thereof.
- Determine the policy for, and scope of, pension arrangements for each Executive Director, the Executive Team and Company Secretary.
- Approve the terms and conditions of any service contract with each Executive Director, the Executive Team and Company Secretary.
- Determine the terms of the Chair of the Board's letter of appointment.
- Ensure that contractual terms on termination for each Executive Director, Executive Team and Company Secretary, and any payments made are fair to the individual and the Company, that failure is not rewarded and that the duty to mitigate loss is recognised.
- Oversee any major changes in employee benefit structures throughout the Group.
- Approve any grants and invitations to participate in the Company's sharesave schemes
 including participating companies, duration of awards, savings limits, whether options should
 be granted at a discount, limits on the number of shares under option and any scaling back of
 applications.
- In respect of any executive, discretionary or employee share scheme, make such adjustments
 to number of shares under option or award, the option price (if any) and/or any other related
 matters as may be judged appropriate in the event of a variation of the issued share capital of
 the Company through a rights issue, open offer or equivalent arrangement.
- Agree the policy for authorising claims for expenses from the Directors.
- Review and approve any gender pay gap report required to be published by the Group by applicable law or regulation.
- Work and liaise as necessary with all other Board Committees.

10 Reporting responsibilities

- The Committee Chair shall report to the Board on matters discussed at each meeting of the Committee.
- The Committee shall make whatever recommendations to the Board it deems appropriate on any area within its remit where action or improvement is needed.
- The Committee will ensure that the provisions regarding disclosure of remuneration, including pensions, as required under all applicable laws and regulations relating to the Company, as well as any associated guidance relating to those laws and regulations, are appropriately fulfilled.
- If the Committee has appointed remuneration consultants, the annual report of the Company's remuneration policy should identify such consultants and state whether they have any other connection with the Company.
- Through the Chair of the Board, ensure that the Company maintains contact as required with its principal shareholders about remuneration.



11 Further delegation

The Chair of the Committee shall have the power to consider and if thought fit approve:

- any points of detail in connection with the administration of the Company's executive pay arrangements or any employee share scheme (including discretionary schemes), where the substantive issue has already been considered and approved by the Committee;
- the grant of options or awards (or the variation of an option or award already granted or of any performance conditions to which it is subject) under the Company's employee share schemes, where this is necessary to correct a manifest error or administrative omission;
- The results of any test of a performance condition or calculation of time apportionment that
 may lead to vesting of an option or award under an employee share scheme of the
 Company;

provided always that where any powers conferred by this section are exercised, the Chair of the committee shall report the circumstances and the decisions taken to the next following meeting of the Committee.

12 Other matters

The Committee shall:

- Have access to sufficient resources in order to carry out its duties, including access to the Company Secretariat for assistance as required.
- Be provided with appropriate and timely training, both in the form of an induction programme for new members and on an on-going basis for all members.
- Give due consideration to laws, regulations and any published guidelines (including the QCA Code) or recommendations regarding the remuneration of Directors of listed companies and formation or operation of share schemes as appropriate.
- Arrange for periodic review of its own performance and, at least annually, review its
 constitution and Terms of Reference to ensure it is operating at maximum effectiveness and
 recommend any changes it considers necessary to the Board for approval.

13 Authority

The Committee is authorised by the Board to obtain, at the Company's expense, external legal or other professional advice on any matters within its Terms of Reference.

Approved by the Board of RWS Holdings plc 26 May 2023



About RWS

RWS Holdings plc is the world's leading provider of technology-enabled language, content management and intellectual property services. We help our clients to connect with and bring new ideas to people globally by communicating business critical content at scale and enabling the protection and realization of their innovations.

Our vision is to help organizations interact effectively with people anywhere in the world by solving their language, content and market access challenges through our collective global intelligence, deep expertise, and smart technology.

Clients include 90 of the globe's top 100 brands, the top 10 pharmaceutical companies and approximately half of the top 20 patent filers worldwide. Our client base spans Europe, Asia Pacific, and North and South America across the technology, pharmaceutical, medical, legal, chemical, automotive, government and telecommunications sectors, which we serve from offices across five continents.

Founded in 1958, RWS is headquartered in the UK and publicly listed on AIM, the London Stock Exchange regulated market (RWS.L).

For further information, please visit: www.rws.com

© All Rights Reserved. Information contained herein is deemed confidential and the proprietary information of RWS Group*. *RWS Group shall mean RWS Holdings PLC for and on behalf of its affiliates and subsidiaries.